
Hamburg Township Addendum #1 to RFP for Hauling Services July 14, 2022                                                                   1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Hamburg Township  

Addendum #1 
 

Request for Proposals for qualified Contractors to provide recycling, yard waste, 
and solid waste collection, transportation and disposal services. 

 
This Addendum #1 to the Hamburg Township Request for Proposals (RFP) for Hauler services is released this 
July 14, 2022, and now formally a part of the RFP documents.  The following responses are provided to 
questions presented at the mandatory pre-proposal meeting held at 3:00 PM on July 13th at the Township 
Hall.  
 
1. Would the Township consider extending the bid opening for at least one to two weeks? 

Response: Unfortunately, no, the proposed program is on a very tight schedule as the Township has a major 
go/no-go decision planned for its mid-August Township Board Meeting and aspires to begin the Contracted 
Operations as early in 2023 as possible with January 1st, 2023, as its aspirational goal should the Township decide 
to proceed.  

2. How will the township send out addendums after the pre-bid meeting?  

Response: Addendums will be posted to the Township’s website at www.hamburg.mi.us/Purchasing as well as 
mailed out to all potential bidders. 

3. Even though the township is currently utilizing a subscription service would the township have any historical 
data on the number of tons collected for solid waste, recyclables and yard waste the past two years? 

Response: The Township does not utilize a subscription service at this time and currently is not involved in 
management of services by haulers – often referred to as an open market.  The Township has not had a Township 
wide trash hauling service for residents – all residents contract for their own trash service. As a result, there is 
no data available at the Township level. 

4. Does the township currently use a three day per week subscription collection schedule?   

Response: No, the Township does not control what days collection takes place by the current group of private 
haulers.  The Township seeks a three-day collection schedule – Tuesday through Thursday – to significantly 
reduce the presence of collection vehicles in the Township during a typical week – and to avoid the disruption 
in collection caused by holiday weekends.  The Township will consider additional days of collection should a 
vendor choose to offer that as an alternative. 

5. In your RFP you reference two zones and that we can bid on one or both zones. The map you included in your 
bid documents look to be divided by color, are there an equal number of units in each zone?  

Response: Yes, there are 4,743 units in the East section of the Township as indicated in the RFP map, and a total 
of 4,610 units in the West section of the Township. 
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6. Page 18, Section 3, even though the cost proposal is submitted separately, will the township read each 
vendors pricing? 

Response: Only the names of the submitting proposers will be read at the opening. The Request for Proposal 
evaluation has a two-stage process.  First the technical proposals are opened and reviewed, then after that initial 
review the cost proposals are then opened.  If a technical proposal by a vendor is deemed to be non-responsive, 
then the cost proposal will not be opened. 

7. Page 35, Section 24, in the 2nd paragraph you reference the new township ordinance with guidelines for the 
residential contract and waste hauler. Has this ordinance been completed, approved by the board and 
available to review?  

Response: The Township is still in the development phase of drafting our Ordinance. Once the Board has had 
the opportunity to review and approve the final version of the Ordinance it will be available for review. 

8. Page 36, Section 24, Sub-section A, second paragraph from the top of the page. It states that all refuse must be 
placed in containers. Is this an unlimited program where if they have addition bags outside the container/cart 
we still need to clean up or do residents need to purchase additional cart(s) if they exceed what the initial cart 
hold?  

Response: Residents will need to purchase additional cart(s) if they exceed the initial cart capacity.  The vendor 
will not have to pick up loose bags not placed in a cart. Responding vendors are welcome to provide supplemental 
services in their proposals (such as holiday amnesty days). 

9. Page 41, Section 32, fifth paragraph, you reference that residents will have an opportunity to switch out carts, 
smaller to larger and vise-a-versa. What is the timeframe that residents must request these types of switch 
outs? 

Response: The successful vendor will need to provide 120 days from start of service as an open opportunity for 
residents to switch out carts at no additional cost.  After those 120 days vendors can propose a fee schedule for 
switching. 

10. At the conclusion of the pre-bid meeting, will vendors have an opportunity to submit additional questions based 
on questions and answers? If yes, when would be the cutoff date?   

Response:  All questions should be submitted to the Township by COB, Monday the 18th.  Responses to any 
submitted questions will be provided in an addendum posted shortly after that date. 

11. Does the following still apply if we bid on just 1 section of the Township?  $500k performance bond $5M per 
occurrence insurance (excluding an umbrella coverage) Pollution liability insurance? 

Response:  Those requirements apply.  Proposers are reminded that the proposal forms have an “exceptions” 
submittal requirement – which is where any issues associated with required insurance and/or performance bonds 
can be noted.  

12.  How will existing contracts that HOAs have with a hauler who is not selected be handled? 

Response: The ordinance will have language that will describe the required transition from HOA contracts after the 
program is started. 

13. What type of containers are needed for Summer Festival? 

Response: Front load dumpsters will be needed.  And the cost for that service should be bundled into the unit rate.   

14. What is covered in the quarterly reconciliation for the direct billing to service units option - Page 32, Item 15?  

Response:  Under the Direct Billing to Service Unit Alternate Proposal, Hamburg Township will have a number of 
expenses to operate the program that will be charged to the Contractor, the cost for which will be embedded in 
the rate structure agreed upon in the contract for each unit. This may include Hamburg Township’s annual 
operational cost for waste collection and disposal and/or recycling collection and processing as well as 
communications regarding the program. 

15. For the recycling collection - what about contamination? 

Response:  The successful contractor will provide operational practices as well as communications approaches to 
help residents understand how to prepare the recyclables, what goes in the bin and what should stay out – and 
address any contamination issues through its customer service functions as well as operational procedures for its 
drivers.  Contamination will also be addressed in the ordinance, providing for a mechanism of phased enforcement 
starting with contamination tags, a series of warnings then repeat offenders moving to civil infraction process.   
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16. Question on relationship between cart reference on page 28 and cart reference in paragraph r on Page 12.   

Response: The Page 12 item addresses the requirement that unsuccessful contractors have to remove carts upon 
expiration of their existing service agreements – which is all about the time period at the beginning of program roll-
out with the selected Contractor.  The reference to carts on Page 28 – especially the reference to valuing carts – is 
specifically referencing the actions required for cart inventory in the Contractor’s possession (not distributed out in 
the field) which indicates that “At the time of contract termination, the inventory will be valued, and that value 
reimbursed to the Contractor by the Township and possession of the inventory transferred to the Township or its 
designee”.  For the Township they would likely pass this cost onto the next selected vendor. 

17. On Page 29 there is reference to carts and yard waste collection – please clarify. 

Response:  The Page 29 reference is specific to the Contractor providing the service unit with the option to purchase 
a compost cart.  The base service required of the Contractor though, is to collect yard waste bagged in kraft bags 
or in a container provided by the Service Unit – as well as service the compost carts that service units have 
purchased from the Contractor.  

18. On page 68 is a reference to “other curbside” – please clarify what this is and is the Contractor obligated to 
provide waste, recycling and yard waste to these locations? 

Response:  As indicated by the * under A-1 Cost Form “Other Curbside in Cost Proposal Form A refers to non-
residential properties (e.g., institutions, churches, daycare, etc.) that can be serviced by a curbside collection vehicle 
and that have residential service level needs (e.g., a trash cart and a recycle cart, some yard waste, etc.) that may 
request that the route cover such a non-residential property at the unit cost proposed by the Contractor.”  All three 
services (waste, recycling and yard waste) must be made available at the vendor’s proposed service unit cost for 
these “Other Curbside” locations.   

19. Would the Township consider a fuel escalator clause as part of a submittal? 

Response:  The Township understands the volatility of fuel prices but would only consider a fuel “adjustment” clause 
that reflected both increases as well as decreases in fuel prices.   

20. On Page 69 Cost Proposal Form Item A-6 – this should be “increase” to Unit Cost/Mo – not “decrease”.   

Response:  That is correct – please use the revised form below for that submittal – recognizing that if the Contractor 
is going to handle all billing under the Alternate via direct billing to service units that this would entail additional 
costs that would be an increase in the service unit cost.   

 

Cost Proposal Item A-6:  Alternate Proposal for Hauler Direct Billing to Service Units  
                                                           Service Unit Cost Increase per Month 
 

Cost Proposal 
Form A - Item 6 

Increase to 
Unit Cost/Mo 

2023 

Increase to 
Unit Cost/Mo 

2024 

Increase to 
Unit Cost/Mo 

2025 

Increase to 
Unit Cost/Mo 

2026 

Increase to 
Unit Cost/Mo 

2027 
Contractor Direct 
Bills to Service Units 
(per month increase in 
Service Unit Cost 
Schedule) 

$ $ $ $ $ 

 
 

 


